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The original specification for the Vestry House is

an excsllent dascripticon of the present building.

'At the Vestry Held for St. George's Parish on Tuegday
the 10th Day of June 1766. . . .
The Vestry Proceeds to businefs. . . .
e Vestry Agrses that there Shall be a New Vestry
ouse built at St. Georga's Parish Church: According
the ollow-ng Dimentions Viz: To Be Built Twenty
oot Long by Sixteen Loob wide in the Clear. The

& Rais'd Eighteen Inches aoove Ground before the

Sleepers are Let Down & Slespers all to be of Good

Sound White Oak. Eight Inches Sgare & Between the

floor and Cealing Eight foot. Ths wall to be Two Brick

& half Thick to the Sleepers from the Sleepers to the

Sgare .two Brick Thick The Gave Ends to be one Brick

& half Thick to the Square from the Sgare to the Top

one Brick Thick. The Work before mention'd to be

done with Sufficient Lime Morter & Sand the Roof to

have Eighteen Inches over Jet & the Joist to be of good
Sound White Oak Seven Inches by four--& Proper Rafters

for ye Same & to be Cover'd with Cyprefs Shingles & to

Show S8ix Inches & the Shingles to be Round'd. The

Under floor to be of good Quart'd pine Plank one Inch

& half Thick. The Cealing to be Lath'd & plaister'd

& the Door to be in the South Gave End with Sufficient

Lock & Hinges. The house to have a Corner Chimney

well Support'd With a half inch & half Quarter Bar

of Iron. the Chimney to be four foot wide at the

Back & to be properly fleer'd & the Jams to be

Eighteen Inches Thick: from the floor to the Arch of

the Chimney four foot & the Chimney to Extend four

foot above the Roof of the House--To be Two Sash Windows

on Each Side with Twelve Lights in Each Window the

Glafs to be Eignt Inches by Ten Wide. & Cood Sufficisnt
Window Shutters with Spring Bolts to the Same The

whole House to be Plaister'd & White wash'd. the Earth

ko be Laid with Brick Under the fire place & Round the fire
;Laca ,a ba Laid with flag Stone that is now Lay'd in the
nouse.

Adjourns till the 21st day of June by ten oClock’
ide--the west--received but one window bzacauss
firaplace occupies part of that wall

or walls zre of Flemish bond, with closers .
nal glazed headers; both gables appear to have
t, as they are of common bond, but probably of
al bricks. A slate roof has replaced the wooden
and a rakes overhang has besen added. The unmculdad
rk is probably of the twentieth century.
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Vastrv House, St. George's Parish

Te DESCRIPTION, continusd

Rafters appear to date from the late ninsateenth or
Vi twentieth century, but the collar beams are original.
ng joists are original The floor structure has been
aced with concrete.

Interior walls are plastered over sawn lathe, applied
to furring strips; orxglnal plaster and nailing blocks
behind the later finish indicates a chair rail at sill
height. The original mantel no longer exists and the fire-
place has been reduced in size. The door is of vertical
beaded boards, with battens attached by wood screws, probably
dating from the nineteenth century.

A restoration program is in progress to restore,
authentically, missing elements, including the wecoden
floor, baseboard and chair rail, and mantel surrounding
a fireplace restored to its original size. Adeguate
electric service, and electric heat, will be introduced.

A later phase will restore exterior features, including
roofing and cornice work, door and door frame, windows and
shutters.

St. George's Parish Church, which the Vestry House
was built to accompany, was constructed in 1759-1760,
and was the third church to occupy this site. The present
building, called Spesutia Church, was designed by Niernsee
and Neilson, architects in Baltimore, and built in 1851.

It is the fourth church on the site. Vestry records indicate
that it stands on the foundations of and incorporates

bricks from the third church, but it is not known whether

or not the present walls, above ground, incorporate standing
sections of the esighteenth century walls.

Designed in the Italian Romanesgue style, Spesutia
Church is of four bays with a chancel at its east end
of one bay plus a semi-octagonal apse. In the second bay
from thas west end, on the south side, is a small entrance
porch and at the northwest corner is an external tower of
three storays, the top ons being octagonal with louvres
on esach side; above is a short concave spirs.

m o
‘-“l
= b=

f 1“

in the parish.
The low-pitched roocfs are coverad with slate and the
generous eave and rake overhangs are supported by wood brackets.

Tha buttresssd brick walls are stuceoed, scorad in
imitation of ashlar. A single ¥ window in each bay is a tall
round headed lancet, filled with small sguare guarrsls set
diagonally in wood muntins. Most of the clear glass is original
The three windows of the apse are filled with gisti inguished -~
contemporary glass designed by Paul Barchowsky, an artist
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Vestrv Housa, St. Gz2orge's Parish

7. DESCRIPTION, continued

The roof trusses ara exposed, internally, and the
walls are plastered. A large round headed arch separatss
the chancel from the navs and a gallery, one bav deen,

axtends across the west end, accessible from a stair
within the tower. _

Vestry records indicate that the church is on the
foundations of, and incorporates bricks from the third
church, constructed in 1759-60. Whether the present
walls, above ground, incorporate standing sections of
the eighteenth century walls is not known. Christ Church,
Accoke=k in Prince George's County, has had a similar

buildihg history; although its style was changed drastically

in the nineteenth centurv, to one not unlike Spesutia, the
majority of its walls date from the orevious century.

The large cemetery which surrounds Spesutia Church,
colonial Vestrv House, and its twentieth century

ish House, was estabplishead in 1718, when the Parish's

nd church was establishad in the present location.
third church was erected in 1759-50 imnmediately north
the second, which was then demplished. The fourth or
2sent church was built upon the foundations of the third,
1851.

The cemetery has manv eighteenth century tombstones,
and is the largest one of this period in the county.
Continuing in use to this day, it has manv nineteenth and
twentiath century tombstonss as well, exhibiting the
full range of that art.

Saveral notable tress are intersperced among the
and the esntire site is well shaded.

zighteenth and ninstesnth century stones are
havn bean moved to this parish cemetery from
emeteries, mostly from the nearby Aberdeen Proving

Edgewood Arsenal.
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STATEMENT OF SIGMIFICANCE

In colonial Maryland, Church of England parish
Vestries usually authorized a special buildingl for use
as a meeting place to conduct parish business and to

codes of the day and the administering of justice for
violations. Vastry Houses were often used as school-
houses, school being conducted by the clergyman or a
member of his family, of somecone else hired by the parish
for the purpose. Vastries often replaced their Vestry
Hous=es, as they did their churches, during the colonial
pariod.

With the disestablishment of a state religion at

he time of the American Revolution, Vestries no longer

officially monitored their community's morals, but they
did continue to function as the governing boards of their
parishes, and they presumably conducted their meeting in
their Vestry Houses. Vestry Houses continued to be used
as schools. The Vestry Minutes, from time to time, name
scnhoolmasters who kept school in the St. George's Parish
Vastry House, including the years 1812 and 1821. Without
govarnmental support, however, building maintenance became
increasingly burdensome, and Vastrias probably fouad it
both mora convenient and more economical k0 meet in
private residences, and Vestry Houses gradually f211 out
cf use. Only two have survived in Ma:ylard~-bt Ceorge's
and that of St. Paul's Parish, Kent County.

Not only is this Vestry House arare survivor in the
statz of one type of building, it is a survivor of the
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parform certain civil duties (as trustees of the government-
supported church), particularly the monitoring of the moral

eightesnth century, in an area with relatively few sighteenth
century structuras. As Harford was the last of the tidewater
unties to be settled, it had fawer substantial eighteenth
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Vestrv House, St. George's Parish

8. SIGNIFICANCE, continued

t. George's Parish has long recoganized the historical
1 of their Vestry House, for in 19052, after apparsnt
lect, extensive repairs were undertaken, but the original
racter was not substanitally altered. Appreciatioan for
antiguity of this structure continued, for a restoration
program is in progress to restore, authentically, those parts
lost or altered from the original.

The Vestry House stands in an extensive cenetery,
astablished in 1718 when Spesutia Church, St. George's
Parish, erected its second church there. The present church
(the fourth) dates from 1851, designed in the Italian Roman-
esgue stvle by Niernsee and Neilson, Architects of Baltimore,
Maryland. It is on the foundation, and is the exact size, of
the third church of 1758; its stuccoed walls are recorded
as being constructed of materials from the third church.3

Although the chief significance of this property
is the rare eighteenth century Vestry House, the architects
of the present church J. Craford Neilson (1816-=1900) and
John R. Niernsee (1331-1885). This team known as Niernsee
and Neilson is ressponsible for major buildings in Baltimore
in the 1850's: St. Luke's Church (National Register),

Grace and St. Peter's Church, two of the most prominent
residences on Mount Vernon Place (National Historic Landmark),
Thomas—-—-Jenks—-—-Gladding and Walters Houses, Camden Station.
The Spesutia Church provides an exception to the firm's
predilection for Gothic in the spirit of the ecclesiologists.
(See:: Phoebe Stanton. The Gothic Reviwal in American Church
Architecture: An Episcode in Taste, (Baltimore: Johns

Hopkins Press, 1963).
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